
Disclaimer: These agendas have been prepared to provide information regarding an upcoming meeting of the 
Common Council of the City of Marshall. This document does not claim to be complete and is subject to change. 
 

 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
Rental Code Ordinance Committee 

A g e n d a  
Tuesday, July 11, 2023 at 12:00 PM 

344 W. Main St., City Hall 

  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Consider Approval of the Minutes 

OLD BUSINESS 

2. Draft Rental Ordinance 

NEW BUSINESS 

ADJOURN 

 

Page 1



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Presenter: Chair 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, July 11, 2023 

Category: APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider Approval of the Minutes 

Background 
Information: 

Enclosed are the minutes from the previous meeting. 

Fiscal Impact:   

Alternative/ 
Variations: 

Staff encourages Members to provide any suggested corrections to the minutes in writing to City 
Clerk, Steven Anderson, prior to the meeting. 

Recommendations: That the minutes from the meeting held on June 13, 2023, be approved as filed with each 
member and that the reading of the same be waived. 

 
 
 

 

Page 2Item 1.



CITY OF MARSHALL 
RENTAL CODE ORDINANCE COMMITTEE 

M I N U T E S  
Tuesday, June 13, 2023 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   John Decramer, Mark Klaith, Zachary Gilman, James Carr, Brad Meulebroeck 
MEMBERS ABSENT: Shawn Butler 
COUNCIL LIASIONS: Craig Schafer and James Lozinski 
STAFF PRESENT: Sharon Hanson, City Administrator; Jason Anderson, Director of Public Works/ City Engineer; 

Pam Whitmore, City Attorney; Quentin Brunsvold, Fire Chief; and Steven Anderson, City Clerk. 
OTHER: Jessica Bentley from SMSU and Angela Larson from United Community Action. 

 
 
At 12:00 PM Co-Chair Decramer called the meeting to order. 
 
Co-Chairs Decramer and Klaith called for introductions of all members present. Decramer reviewed the purpose of the 
committee and reviewed the rules and general housekeeping items for committee members and the public that are in 
attendance. 
 
Draft Rental Ordinance 
City Attorney Whitmore gave background information on why this committee was formed and the basis of the creation 
of the Rental Code Ordinance. Schafer added that when this topic was first broached several years ago life safety 
concerns were at the forefront. Clarification was asked on the registration fee and Jason Anderson clarified that there 
would be two different fees. One fee is strictly for the registration under this ordinance and the other fee would fall 
under an inspection fee if building/fire codes were not met. It was brought up that the city currently has a process for 
weed/snow removal and why rental cleanup can’t follow the same process. Attorney Whitmore pointed out that 
weed/snow removal fall under state statute and cities are given authority to abate issues. There was no such authority 
given for rental properties by statute, therefore cities need to have an ordinance in place if they wish to have any 
regulatory power. The discussion moved to educating renters on the do’s and don’t of living in a building owned by 
someone else.  
 
Meulebroeck brought up concerns with city employees entering properties and not alerting the property owner or 
turning a complaint about the outside of the house as grounds to enter the inside of the property. It was clarified that a 
good faith effort of notice would be given to property owners, which is why the registration program is important to 
know who owns the property, and that the property owner could be present during the inspection. Attorney Whitmore 
added that if an inspection takes place outside the home the city has no authority or right to enter the home. Fire Chief 
Brunsvold mentioned that he favored the ordinance and wished it was stricter that it currently is. The life/safety aspect 
of the ordinance was very important for the Fire Department to ensure that smoke alarms, extinguishers and other such 
items were included. Jessica Bently from SMSU gave examples of how notices and complaints were handled with dorm 
residents.  
 
Some suggestions to be added to the registration included a self-inspection checklist for landlord and safety information 
from the Fire Department. Attorney Whitmore pointed out that the pool section of the ordinance would be removed as 
the city does not currently require a permit/license for residential pools. The last bit of discussion was on the 
registration fee and if it would be per unit or per building. Staff would review the fee structure and bring forth 
something at the next meeting. 
 
Next Steps 
The committee decided to meet once a month on the second Tuesday from Noon to 1:30 PM. 
 
Adjourn 
At 1:20 PM Co-Chair Decramer adjourned the meeting. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Steven Anderson 
City Clerk 

Page 3Item 1.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Presenter: Facilitator 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, July 11, 2023 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: INFO/ACTION 

Subject: Draft Rental Ordinance 

Background 
Information: 

A draft of the rental ordinance will be presented to the group for discussion. 
 
Points of Discussion 

 Parking 

 Rental Fees 

 Comparable Fees 

 Exemptions for Renting to Relatvies 

Fiscal Impact:  

Alternative/ 
Variations: 

 

Recommendations: Provide feedback and direction on the proposed ordinance. 

 

Page 4Item 2.



 

MA765\10\856578.v3 

ORDINANCE 2023-______ 

 

An Ordinance amending Chapter 18 of the Marshall Municipal Code to create Article18-VIII, a Rental 

Housing Code. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Marshall has determined that there is a need to update the City Code, Chapter 18 

– Buildings and Building Regulations. 

NOW THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Marshall does Ordain that Marshall City Code, 

Chapter 18 be amended to add Article 18-VIII, Residential Rental Code to read as follows: 

Section 18-137. Findings and  Purpose. 

 (a) Legislative finding. It is hereby found that there exist and may in the future exist, within 

the City, residential rental premises, rooming units, or parts thereof, and renter-occupied mobile homes 

which, by deficiencies in their structure, equipment, sanitation, maintenance, use or occupancy, affect 

or are likely to affect adversely the public health, including the physical, mental and social well-being of 

people, their safety, and general welfare. To correct and prevent the existence of such adverse 

conditions, to achieve and maintain such levels of residential environmental quality that will protect and 

promote public health, safety and general welfare, preserve property values and prevent blight, it is 

further found that the establishment and enforcement of minimum rental housing standards are 

required. It is further found that a municipal registration program is appropriate to effectively enforce 

residential rental unit maintenance standards and correct or prevent law violations, nuisances and other 

disturbances and disorders involving residential rental units within the City. 

 

 (b) Purpose. The purpose of this chapter is to establish a program for identifying rental housing 

units within the City of Marshall. This chapter is adopted to protect the public health, safety and general 

welfare of the citizens of the City of Marshall by: 

• Promoting safety from fires and accidents; 

• Providing a means for the fair administration and enforcement of this Code for all residential 

 rental housing units; 

• Providing minimum standards for basic equipment and facilities; 

• Reducing environmental hazards to health; and 

• Assisting in controlling criminal activities in rental housing. 

 

Section 18-138. Scope. 

This chapter applies to rental housing units described herein that are rented or leased in whole or in 

part, including apartment buildings, town homes, single family and multifamily housing, guest and 

caretaker houses, manufactured homes and condominiums. It also includes any accessory structures of 

the rental housing units, such as garages and storage buildings, and appurtenances such as sidewalks, 

driveways, and retaining walls, which are on the property of the rental housing unit. This chapter does 

not apply to on-campus college or university housing units; Minnesota Department of Health licensed 

rest homes; convalescent care facilities; licensed group homes; nursing homes; hotels; motels; or 

owner-occupied units. 

Commented [WPJ1]: NOTE: According to staff, staff will 
recommend bed and breakfast code section be repealed at 
same time of enactment of this ordinance. 

Page 5Item 2.



 

MA765\10\856578.v3 

Section 18-139. Definitions. For purposes of this Ordinance, the following definitions shall apply: 

“City” means the City of Marshall, its Council, and staff. 

“Dwelling” means any building or other permanent or temporary structure, including a manufactured or 

mobile home which is wholly or partly used, or intended to be used, for living or sleeping by human 

occupants. 

“Local Property Manager” means a natural person residing within 50 miles of the City of Marshall who is 

authorized by the rental unit owner to make decisions for the owner about rental, occupancy and 

maintenance of the rental unit, or a licensed, or bonded, and/or insured company engaged primarily in 

providing such services for hire. 

“Occupant” means any person residing in a rental unit on a permanent or short-term basis. 

“Permanent Basis” means any consecutive term of 30 days or more or inconsecutive terms adding up to 

more than 30 days in a calendar year.  

“Premises” means a dwelling unit and the grounds on which the structure containing the dwelling unit is 

located, or in the case of a multiple dwelling unit structure, the dwelling units and any common areas 

including those both inside and outside of the building and the grounds on which the dwelling units 

and/or common areas are located. 

“Private/vacation home rental” – Any home, cabin, condominium, bedroom(s) or similar building that is 

advertised as or held out to be a place where sleeping accommodations are furnished to the public on a 

nightly, weekly, or for less than a 30-day time period, and is not a bed and breakfast, resort, hotel or 

motel. 

“registration holder” means a person or entity to whom registration for a rental unit is issued under this 

ordinance. 

“Rent”, “Lease”, “Let” or “Sublet” means the leasing or a rental unit to a non-owner for a fixed or non-

fixed period of time and shall include other similar arrangements whereby nonpayment of a periodic 

payment means the occupants may be evicted without the necessity of either a statutory mortgage 

foreclosure procedure, a statutory termination of contract for deed procedure, or a statutory 

repossession procedure. 

“Rental Unit” or “Residential Rental Unit” means any house, apartment, condominium, townhouse, 

room or group of rooms, constituting or located within, a dwelling and forming a single habitable unit 

which is leased or rented for occupancy for a period of not less than thirty (30) days. A room offered for 

rent or lease to a roomer or boarder is considered a rental unit. 

“Short term rental” means a dwelling, or portion of a dwelling unit, that is offered or provided to a guest 

by a short-term rental owner or operator for a fee for fewer than thirty (30) consecutive nights. Short-

term rental units may be whole house rentals, apartments, condominiums, or individual rooms in 

homes. For the purpose of administration and enforcement of this title, the terms overnight rental, 

nightly rental, and vacation rental are interchangeable with short-term rentals. Subleasing or subletting 

of units for short- term rental is prohibited if the underlying zone prohibits such use. Short term rental 

does not apply to on-campus college or university housing units; Minnesota Department of Health 

Page 6Item 2.



 

MA765\10\856578.v3 

licenses rest homes; convalescent care facilities; licensed group homes; nursing homes; hotels; motels; 

or owner-occupied units. 

“Resort” – An establishment that includes buildings, campgrounds, lodges, structures, dwelling 

units/sites, homes, enclosures or any part thereof kept, used, maintained or advertised as or held out to 

the public to be, a place where sleeping accommodations are furnished to the public and primarily to 

those seeking recreation, for periods of one (1) day, one (1) week, or longer, and having for rent two (2) 

or more homes, cabins, units, campsites or enclosures. All cabins, rooms, dwellings units/sites or 

enclosures must be included in the resort rental business. The entire parcel(s), lot(s), or tract(s) of land 

must be controlled and managed by the registration holder. 

Other applicable terms in this Ordinance, not otherwise defined, are as defined in the State Building 

Code and the City Zoning Ordinances. 

Section 18-140. Registration Requirements. 

 (a). It shall be unlawful for any owner to rent or cause to be rented, leased or let within the City, 

any Rental Unit, including short-term rental occupancy), unless that Rental Unit is registered for 

occupancy pursuant to a valid and current rental registration issued by the City of Marshall. 

 (b). Each rental unit must have an owner, or Local Property Manager designated by the owner, 

who resides within 50 miles of the City of Marshall. 

 (c). Any person or entity desiring to rent, let, lease or sublet any rental unit shall apply for 

registration by using forms furnished by the City for that purpose. The application must provide the 

following information: 

i. Name, address, telephone number, and email address of the property owner. 

ii. Name, address, telephone number, and email address of the Local Property Manager. 

iii. The street address of the rental property. 

iv. The number of units within the rental property. 

v. The name, telephone number, address, and email address of the person authorized to make 

repairs or services for the property if in violation of City or State codes, if the person is different 

from the owner or Local Property Manager. 

vi. The name, telephone number, address and email address of the waste collection company 

serving the rental property. 

vii. For dwellings containing multiple rental units, a sketch of the property identifying all rental 

units by assigned number, and a sketch of the parking lot, unless all required parking is provided 

within enclosed attached garages or unless off-street parking is not required by Ordinance. 

viii. For dwellings containing common entry/space, the information of the fire sprinkler system, 

fire panel, and fire extinguishers' most recent testing dates, when applicable. 

Page 7Item 2.



 

MA765\10\856578.v3 

ix. An acknowledgment that the applicant has received and reviewed the provisions of this 

Article, intends to abide by its provisions, and will include reference to this Article in any written 

agreement used in renting the property. 

 (d). Exemptions. This Ordinance does not apply to on-campus college or university housing 

units; Minnesota Department of Health licenses rest homes; convalescent care facilities; licensed group 

homes; nursing homes; hotels; motels; or owner-occupied units or to a house, townhouse or 

condominium which is being “rented back” to its immediate prior owner. 

Section 18-141. Manner Of Registration Renewal.  

 (a) Other than initial registrations of all existing rental properties which must be completed 

within ____ days of enactment of this ordinance, registration shall be required each calendar year and 

may be issued on a calendar year basis prior to January 1 of each successive year. No registration fee will 

be owed during the year of this Ordinances’ original enactment. 

 (b) The City will annually remind rental unit owners (or their designated Local Property 

Managers) of this requirement. Registration renewal forms must be delivered to the City no later than 

the 15th day of December each year and must contain the same information as required for new 

registration in Section 18-140 herein. Failure of the City to issue reminder notice and/or failure of an 

owner (or Local Property Manager) to receive a reminder notice, does not excuse or waive the 

registration required by this Ordinance. 

 (c) Upon receipt of a completed registration application and payment of the applicable 

registration fee, City will issue a Registration Certificate for the applicable property unless otherwise 

prohibited under this Article or other applicable provisions of the Code. 

Section 18-142. Transfer Of Property. Every new owner of a rental unit, whether fee owner or contract 

purchaser, shall furnish to the City the new owner’s name, address, telephone number, email address 

and fax number, if one (and the name, address, telephone number, email and fax number, if one, of the 

new owner’s designated Local Property Manager) before taking possession of the rental property upon 

closing the transaction. No new registration fee is required of the new owner during the year in which 

such possession takes place, provided that the previous owner has paid all registration fees and has 

complied with all requirements of this Ordinance and any violations of health, zoning, fire or safety 

codes of the City. If any change in the type of occupancy as originally registered is contemplated by the 

new owner, a new registration application will be required. 

Section 18-143. Posting Of Registration. Each rental unit registration holder must provide the current 

rental unit certification to the tenant/renter of each unit in building with fewer than four (4) units. 

Buildings with four or more units and a common entry shall have the certification posted near the 

common entry. Buildings with four or more units and no common entry shall either post the certification 

in a conspicuous location on the premises or, if not conspicuous location, then provide the current 

rental unit certification to the tenant/renter of each unit directly. 

Section 18-144. Fees. The fees for rental unit registration, registration renewal, late fees and inspection 

may be set by resolution of the Marshall City Council adopted from time to time. The fee for rental unit 

registration and the fee for registration renewals are nonrefundable and will not be prorated for partial 

terms.  

Page 8Item 2.



 

MA765\10\856578.v3 

Section 18-145. Maintenance Of Records. All records, files and documents pertaining to rental unit 

registration and rental unit inspections will be maintained by the City and will be available to the public 

as allowed, permitted, or required by State Law and City Ordinance. 

Section 18-146. Maintenance Standards.  

 (a). Every rental unit shall be maintained in a safe, sanitary, and habitable condition and in 

compliance with any standards or requirements imposed by state or local statutes, codes, ordinances, or 

other laws applicable to rental housing, including, but not limited to the current City Housing Code and 

the state Fire Code. In addition, for basement living units, or sleeping rooms below the ground floor, an 

egress window meeting the requirements of the Uniform Building Code, or another acceptable means of 

exit must be provided. Additionally, site conditions constituting a nuisance as described in this Article or 

elsewhere in the City Code shall be considered a violation of the Maintenance Standards of this 

Ordinance. 

 (b). Each Premises shall comply with parking requirements in City Code, particularly Article 74-V 

and 86-VI,  

 (c). Responsibilities of occupants. 

(i) Occupants of a rental unit shall not remove any smoke or CO detectors or remove the 

batteries powering the said detectors or render them inoperable in any other way. 

Owners shall make good faith efforts to regularly replace batteries or inoperable 

detectors and must, within two (2) days of receiving notice from an occupant of a rental 

unit, replace expired batteries or inoperable detectors. 

(ii) Occupants of a rental unit shall store and dispose of their rubbish, garbage, refuse 

and any other waste in accordance with their lease or rental agreement and the City 

Ordinance. Occupants shall not accumulate any of the above on the property except 

within the garbage enclosure if provided on the premises. Occupants who fail to comply 

with this section may be subject to applicable remedies under the lease or rental 

agreement. At no time does the failure of the occupants to comply with this section 

waive the property owners’ duty for the property to comply with applicable state and 

local laws or regulations.  

Section 18-147. Inspections And Investigations. 

 (a). The city has the authority to inspect any Rental Housing Unit if required pursuant to the 

City’s Building Code or Housing Code which has incorporated, by reference, the state codes, or upon 

receiving a complaint of code violations. Department personnel, police officers, building inspection 

officials and their respective designees/representatives or “contractors” hired by the City, are hereby 

authorized to make the inspections.  The identities of any person filing a complaint about violations of 

state law or local ordinance concerning the use of real property, and any information that would identify 

such person, is classified as confidential information under Minnesota Statute 13.44. No employee or 

agent of the City shall release or reveal such information except by court order. 

 (b). Forms. The city shall provide forms upon which complaints may be made regarding the 

condition or license and registration status of any rental property. 

Page 9Item 2.



 

MA765\10\856578.v3 

 (c). Upon receipt of a complaint, the City shall notify the owner/representative of the existence 

of the complaint and allow the owner/representative forty-eight (48) hours to address the issue unless 

the City determines that the complaint alleges an immediate safety or health concern. If the City, 

through review and authorization of the City Administrator or City Attorney, deems that the complaint 

alleges an immediate safety or health concern (“emergency situation”) or if a public safety emergency 

exists, all persons authorized herein on behalf of the City, after making reasonable attempts to provide 

notice to the owner/representative, shall have authority to enter, at reasonable times and with consent 

of the tenant or occupant, if any, for purposes of enforcing this ordinance. If after forty-eight (48) hours, 

the Complainant, either independently or in response to an inquiry by the City, that the issue has not 

been addressed, the owner or occupant shall provide access to the Rental Unit upon request of the City. 

Refusal to reasonably grant access shall be grounds for rejection or suspension of a rental registration. 

All persons authorized herein to inspect shall have the authority to enter, at reasonable times, and 

following 48 hours written notice to the property owner or designated Local Property Manager for any 

rental unit or structure containing a rental unit registered or required to be registered, for the purpose 

of enforcing this Ordinance. If occupied, the City will also make a good faith effort to give the tenant or 

occupant reasonable notice under the circumstances in the same manner contemplated under 

Minnesota Statutes Section 504B.211. Property owner or designated Local Property Manager may be 

present while the inspection is being carried out. 

 (d). Fees. The owner/representative shall be assessed appropriate inspection fees if the 

complaint is found to be substantiated by this inspection. When a city employee or agent makes an 

inspection as a result of a written complaint and no violations are found the city shall issue a notice of 

compliance to the tenant and the owner/representative. If the complaint is substantiated by the 

inspection, written notice of the observed violation(s)shall be given to the owner/representative and 

tenant. 

 (e). Written notice of a violation of this Ordinance may be given to the registration holder by 

certified mail directed to the address of the registration holder as shown by the City’s registration 

application file or by e-mail with delivery notification and receipt requested when sending that email to 

the email as shown by the City’s registration application file or by delivery in person. Said notice may 

contain a Compliance Order stating that compliance with this Ordinance shall be made immediately and, 

in that case, the notice shall advise the registration holder that the property may be re- inspected in not 

less than fifteen (15) days, unless extended by the City based on good cause. In the alternative, the city 

will work with the owner/representative to develop a timeline for the required repairs. A re-inspection 

will be conducted at the expiration of the time period set for repairs. If the repairs have been completed 

in a satisfactory manner, a notice of compliance will be issued to the owner/representative and the 

tenant. In the event the repairs have not been completed in a satisfactory manner further action will be 

taken as permitted by this Code or state law. 

 (f). A registration holder may appeal to the City Council the requirements of any Compliance 

Order by filing a written appeal with the City no later than ten (10) days after the date of issuance of the 

Compliance Order. Enforcement of the Compliance Order shall be stayed pending the decision of the 

City Council on the appeal. 

  (g). If the complaint is that a residential rental housing unit is not registered, the city shall inform 

the owner in writing that the owner has sixty (60) days to either: 

Commented [WPJ2]: This could be replaced by an 
administrative procedure for all code violations 

Page 10Item 2.



 

MA765\10\856578.v3 

(i) Comply with the terms of this chapter by registering the unit and by paying all 

applicable fees; or 

(ii) Cease rental operations. 

Section 18-148. Failure to Grant Registration, Revocation, Suspension or Failure to Renew 

Registration. 

 (a). The City reserves the right to not register a rental unit unless it complies with the 

requirements of this Ordinance, or any other ordinance of the City or any special permit issued by the 

City, or the laws of the State of Minnesota 

 (b). Any registration issued under this Ordinance is subject to the right, which is hereby 

expressly reserved by the City, to deny, suspend, revoke or not renew the same should the registration 

holder or their agents, employees, representatives or lessees directly or indirectly operate or maintain 

the rental dwellings contrary to the provisions of this Ordinance or any other ordinance of the City or 

any special permit issued by the City, or the laws of the State of Minnesota. Provided, however, 

registration shall not be denied, suspended, revoked, or not renewed if the registration holder complies 

with a compliance order or orders pursuant to this section or within a reasonably timely manner as 

mutually agreed upon by the City and the registration holder or their authorized agent or 

representative. 

(i) In buildings containing more than one (1) rental housing unit, the revocation, suspension, 

denial, or non-renewal may apply to one (1) or more rental housing units based on specific 

violations.  

(ii) The basis for such revocation, suspension, denial or non- renewal includes, but is not limited 

to, any of the following circumstances: 

(1) The registration was procured by misrepresentation of the facts with regard to the 

rental dwelling unit. 

(2) The applicant or one (1) acting on his/her behalf made oral or written misstatements 

pertaining to the application. 

(3) The actions of the owner or owner's representative involving a rental unit have 

created a danger to the public health, safety or welfare. 

(4) The rental dwelling unit contains conditions that endanger the safety, health or 

welfare of any member of the public. 

(5) Failure to pay any required application, penalty or reinstatement fee, if any. 

(6) Failure to correct violations of this section in the time period specified in the notice 

of violation and correction. 

(7) Following the third instance of disorderly conduct specified in state statutes. 

(8) Any violation of this chapter or violations in the rental housing unit or premises 

where rental housing unit is located of the City Housing or Building Code. 

Page 11Item 2.



 

MA765\10\856578.v3 

 (c). The City shall notify the applicant that registration has been denied, or the registration 

holder that registration is being suspended, revoked or not renewed. The suspension, revocation or 

non-renewal shall occur thirty-five (35) days after the date of the notification order, or at such later date 

as set out in the notification. The revocation shall never occur until sixty (60) day minimal grace period 

of suspension expiration. 

 (d). A determination by the City to deny, suspend, revoke or not renew registration of a rental 

unit may be appealed to the City Council of Marshall by filing with the City Administrator a written 

notice of appeal within fifteen (15) days of the date on which the City mails such determination to the 

applicant or registration holder. In that event, the appeal will be heard by the Council at its next meeting 

occurring at least fifteen (15) days after the filing of the Notice of Appeal. 

 (e). At any appeal of a determination by the City under this Ordinance, the registration holder or 

applicant, (Local Property Manager for the registration holder or applicant), or an attorney representing 

said party, may appear and make a presentation to the City Council. The City shall present to the City 

Council the basis for the determination being appealed. After the hearing, the Council may uphold, 

reverse or modify the decision of the City based upon the provision of this Ordinance and upon the 

protection of the public health, sanitation safety or general welfare of the residents of rental units 

within the City. The City Council shall issue written findings and determination within thirty-one (31) 

days of the hearing, unless the Council extends that time for good cause. 

 (f). A decision of the City Council made as provided in this section may be appealed by Writ of 

Certiorari to the Court of Appeals of the State of Minnesota pursuant to its Rules of Civil Appellate 

Procedure and Minnesota Statutes. 

Section 18-149. Additional conditions for short-term rental units. 

 (a) No additional occupancy in recreational vehicles, campers, and tents shall be permitted. Off-

street parking shall comply with Section 86-230, the City Parking Ordinance. Additionally, no more than 

two guest parking on the street shall be permitted.  

 (b) If the short-term rental owner owns both short-term and regular rental units in the same 

property, the owner must register the short-term and regular units separately. Short-term rental 

licenses follow the same fee structure and registration cycle as regular licenses and may include either a 

conversion fee or a change of ownership fee, depending on the type of unit being rented. The annual 

fee for a short-term rental registration shall be as established in the license fee schedule. 

 (c) Any person operating a short-term rental property must comply with Minnesota Department 

of Health rules regarding public pools and shall, during the course of any such rental period, post a sign 

with the information required by the Department of Health. 

 (d) Any identification signs must comply with City’s sign ordinance.  

 (e) The property shall not be listed for sale at the time of initial application for registration or 

any renewals.  

 (f) If a short-term rental unit is located in a single-family residence or a duplex, the property 

lines shall be clearly marked with hedge line, fencing, or corner posts. If pets are permitted, the entire 

yard shall be fenced off with a solid fence.  

Deleted: which includes a swimming pool that does not 
possess a current and valid pool license

Deleted: indicating that the pool is not licensed and 
inspected

Page 12Item 2.



 

MA765\10\856578.v3 

 (g) The owner, local property manager, or responsible party shall include the applicable short-

term rental registration or license number on all advertisements, listings, or postings of the unit. 

 (h) The owner of any short-term rental dwelling unit required to be registered shall maintain 

liability insurance appropriate to cover the short-term rental use in the aggregate of not less than three 

hundred thousand dollars ($300,000) or conduct each short-term rental transaction through a short-

term rental platform that provides equal or greater coverage. 

 (i) Unless further restricted by occupancy laws, no short-term dwelling unit shall be occupied by 

more than ten (10) persons, regardless of property size.  

 (j) The owner, local property manager, or responsible party shall post the following information 

in a conspicuous place within each dwelling unit used as a short-term rental: 

 i). Emergency contact information that is accessible at all times;  

ii). Contact information for the property owner, or local property manager; 

iii). Street address;  

iv). Floor plan indicating fire exits and escape routes; and 

v). The short-term rental registration number. 

 (k) In Bed and Breakfast facilities, the owner shall operate and permanently occupy such facility, 

shall not operate other commercial enterprises, including food and beverage services to anyone other 

than registered guests, from such facility, and shall not permit or provide cooking equipment in guest 

bedrooms.   

Section 18-150. Conduct on registered premises. 

 (a) The Owner, as registration holder, shall take such actions as are reasonably necessary to 

assist in the prevention of instances of disorderly conduct by tenants, members of tenant's household, 

occupants, members of occupants’ household and guests. For the purposes of this section, rental 

housing units shall include any common areas in the building where the rental housing unit is located. 

 (b) Disorderly Conduct. For the purposes of this section, disorderly conduct may include, but is 

not limited to, the following: 

(i) Illegal activity involving controlled substances as defined in MN Stat. § 152.01, et seq., in the 

rental housing unit. 

(ii) Acts of violence or threats of violence including but not limited to discharge of firearms, 

prostitution, intimidation, assault, or any other act that otherwise jeopardizes the health, safety 

or welfare of the registration holder, his agents, tenants or any other person. 

(iii) Violation of Minnesota Statute, Section 609.72, prohibiting disorderly conduct, when the 

violation disturbs the peace and quiet of the occupants of at least one unit on the registered 

premises or other premises, other than the unit occupied by the person(s) committing the 

violation. 

Page 13Item 2.



 

MA765\10\856578.v3 

(iv) Violation of Minnesota Statutes 609.74 and 609.745 Public Nuisances. 

(v) Violation of Minnesota Statutes 609.66, Subd. la, 609.67 or 624.713 Unlawful use or 

possession of a firearm or weapon. 

(vi) Violation of Minnesota Statute 609.50 Obstructing Legal Process. 

(vii) Violation of Marshall Code Chapter 14, Animals, Division 86-VI-4 Performance Standards, 

Noise, Chapter 42 Offences, and Chapter 50, Solid Waste. 

(viii) Violation of Minnesota Statutes 609.321-609.324, prohibiting prostitution and acts relating 

thereto. 

(ix) Violation of Minnesota Statutes 340A.401, prohibiting the unlawful sale of alcoholic 

beverages. 

(x) Violation of Minnesota Statutes 340A.503, prohibiting the underage use of alcoholic 

beverages. 

 (c) Notice of Violations. 

(i). First instance. Upon determination by the city that a rental housing unit was the location of 

disorderly conduct, the city shall notify the registration holder either by certified mail directed 

to the address of the registration holder as shown by the City’s registration application file or by 

e-mail as shown by the City’s registration application file with delivery notification and receipt 

requested when sending that email to the registration holder and direct the registration holder 

to take steps to prevent further violations. 

(ii). Second instance. If a second instance of disorderly conduct occurs at a rental housing unit 

within twelve (12) months of the time a notice was sent for previous disorderly conduct at the 

same unit, the city may notify the registration holder either by certified mail directed to the 

address of the registration holder as shown by the City’s registration application file or by e-mail 

as shown by the City’s registration application file with delivery notification and receipt 

requested when sending that email to the registration holder of the violation and direct the 

registration holder to submit, within ten (10) days of the date of the notice, a written report of 

all actions taken by the registration holder since the first violation notice and actions the 

registration holder intends to take to assist in the prevention of disorderly conduct. The 

registration holder shall notify the tenant or tenants within ten days of the notice of disorderly 

conduct violation. 

(iii) Third instance. If a third instance of disorderly conduct occurs at a rental housing unit within 

twelve (12) months after the first of two (2) previous notices of disorderly conduct at the same 

unit, the rental housing unit registration may be revoked, suspended, or not renewed by the 

city. The owner/representative has the right to appeal the decision as outlined in ______ of the 

Marshall Code.  

 (d) For purposes of this section, second and third instances of disorderly conduct shall be those 

which: 

(i) Occur at the same rental housing unit; or 

Commented [WPJ3]: Administrative process reference 
again. 

Page 14Item 2.



 

MA765\10\856578.v3 

(ii) Involve tenants at the same rental housing unit; or 

(iii) Involve guests or invitees at the same rental housing unit; or 

(iv) Involve guests or invitees of the same tenant; or 

(v) Involve the same tenant. 

 (e) No adverse action shall be taken against the rental registration when the instance of 

disorderly conduct occurred during a pending eviction proceedings (unlawful detainer) or within thirty 

(30) days of notice given by the registration holder to a tenant to vacate the rental housing unit. 

However, adverse registration action may proceed when the registration holder fails to diligently pursue 

the eviction process. Further, an action to deny, revoke, suspend, or not renew a license based upon 

violations of this section may be postponed or discontinued at any time if the registration holder has 

taken appropriate measures which will prevent further instances of disorderly conduct which may 

include a failed eviction process, or if the registration holder has proceeded in good faith to secure 

termination of the tenancy but was unsuccessful for reasons beyond the registration holder's 

reasonable control. 

 (f) In lieu of revoking, suspending or not renewing the rental registration, the city may require 

an action plan to be completed and complied with by the registration holder, or local property manager 

within a designated time frame which outlines the steps necessary to be taken and complied with in 

order to correct identified violations and the measures to be taken to ensure ongoing compliance with 

the city code and other applicable laws. 

 (g) Determining disorderly conduct. A determination that the rental housing unit has been the 

location of disorderly conduct shall be made by a preponderance of the evidence to support such a 

determination. It shall not be necessary that criminal charges be brought in order to support a 

determination of disorderly conduct, nor shall the fact of dismissal or acquittal of such a criminal charge 

operate as a bar to adverse registration action under this section. 

 (i) Enforcement. Enforcement actions provided in this section shall not be exclusive, and the city 

may take any action with respect to a registration holder, a tenant, or the licensed rental housing unit(s) 

as is authorized by the City Code or state law. 

Section 18-151. Interim Housing. As a condition of receiving a rental unit registration, the registration 

holder agrees that in the event that the registration is denied, suspended, revoked, or not renewed due 

to the action or inaction of the registration holder or registration holder's agent, representative, 

employee or lessee, all tenants or sub-tenants of the residential rental unit shall be provided, at the 

registration holder's expense, suitable interim housing approved by the City. The registration holder 

shall provide such interim housing until the registration for the unit is restored or until the end of the 

lease term, whichever occurs first. Failure of the registration holder to provide and/or pay for such 

interim housing shall be grounds for suspension of all rental unit registrations the registration holder has 

in the City. 

Section 18-152. Applicable Laws. registration holders are subject to all of the ordinances and/or laws of 

the City and State of Minnesota relating to rental dwellings, and this Ordinance shall not be construed or 

interpreted to supersede or limit any other applicable ordinance or law. 

Page 15Item 2.



 

MA765\10\856578.v3 

Section 18-153. Violations, Injunctive Relief. 

 (a). Nothing in this Ordinance prevents the City from taking enforcement action under any of its 

fire, housing, zoning, health, safety or other codes, ordinances, and State laws for violations thereof, or 

to seek injunctive relief and criminal prosecution for violations of any ordinance, code or law. Nothing 

contained in this Ordinance prevents the City from seeking injunctive relief against a property owner or 

designated property manager who fails to comply with the terms and conditions of this Ordinance or to 

obtain an order closing such rental units until violations of this particular Ordinance have been remedied 

by the property owner or designated property manager. 

 (b). Violation of this Ordinance is a misdemeanor. Violations include operation of a rental unit 

without proper registration and/or operation of a rental unit after revocation or suspension of 

registration. Each separate day on which a continuing violation occurs is a separate violation. Any 

written or oral agreement to rent or cause to be rented, leased or let, any Rental Unit that is in violation 

of this Ordinance is illegal as a matter of law. 

 (c). This chapter may also be enforced by injunction, abatement, mandamus, or any other 

appropriate remedy in any court of competent jurisdiction.  

Section 18-154. No retaliation. Per Minnesota State Statute Section 5048.205, Subd. 2, Emergency calls 

are permitted. 

(a) A landlord may not: 

(i) Bar or limit a residential tenant's or short-term rental occupant’s right to call for police 

or emergency assistance in response to domestic abuse or any other conduct; or 

(ii) Impose a penalty on a residential tenant or a short-term rental occupant for calling for 

police or emergency assistance in response to domestic abuse or any other conduct. 

(b) A residential tenant or short-term rental occupant may not waive and a landlord may not 

require the residential tenant to waive the residential tenant's right to call for police or 

emergency assistance. 

Section 18-155. Written Notices. Notices from the City required by this Ordinance shall be effective if 

personally delivered or if mailed to the addressee to the address shown in the City file pertaining to the 

rental unit involved in the notice. 

Section 18-156. Conflict of Ordinances; effect of partial invalidity.  

 (a) Conflict. In any case where a provision of this Article is found to be in conflict with a provision 

of any zoning, building, fire safety or health ordinance or code of the City existing on the effective date 

of this section, or of any state or federal statute, rule or regulation, the provision which establishes the 

higher standard for the promotion and protection of the health and safety of the people shall prevail. In 

any case where a provision of this Article is found to be in conflict with a provision of any other 

ordinance or code of the City existing on the effective date of this section which establishes a lower 

standard for the promotion and protection of the health and safety of the people, the provisions of this 

Article shall be deemed to prevail to the extent allowed by the State and Federal law.  

Page 16Item 2.



 

MA765\10\856578.v3 

 (b) Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any 

reason held to be invalid, such decision shall not affect validity of the remaining portions of this 

Ordinance.  

 

 

Page 17Item 2.



City Fee Tier 1 Fee Tier 2 Fee Renewal Period Notes
Alexandria $20/unit <7 $15/unit >8 $7.50/unit HUD housing Annual

Cambridge $25/unit Bi-Annual

Detroit Lakes $60/single $75/duplex $45 + $15/unit Multi-unit Annual $60 Mobile Home. $350 VRBO.

Fergus Falls -Grandfathered $120/single $140/duplex $200-$300 + $20/unit Multi-unit Annual

Fergus Falls -New $500 + $20/single $500 + $20/unit >1 Annual $500 first time registration

Grand Rapids $100/single $150/duplex $200-$700 Multi-unit Annual Complaint Inspection: $100, No Manager Info: $100

Hutchinson $20/unit Annual Reinspection/Complaint Inspections: $50

Leseuer $75/unit <3 $75/unit + $25/unit 3 year

Mahtomedi $500 + $7/unit Bi-Annual Reinspection: 25% of license or $50, whichever is greater

Moorhead $85-$500/unit Annual Complaint Inspection: $100/hour

Roseville $35/unit <4 $102 + $15/unit >4 Annual Fire Dept. inspects annually

Woodbury $18/unit Annual

Worthington $80/unit <6 $50/unit >7 3 year

3 year w/inspection. Annual if in violation, must have 2 good 

regulary scheduled inspections before back to 3yr

Page 18Item 2.


	Top
	Item 1.	Approval of the Minutes
	Agenda Memo--Consider approval of Minutes
	06.13.23 Minutes

	Item 2.	Draft Rental Ordinance
	Agenda Memo
	DOCSOPEN-#856578-v3-Draft_Rental_Ordinance
	Rental Fee Comparisons

	Bottom

